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Mr. Jay Gallagher, Albany Bureau Chief

Gannett
150 State Street

Albany, New York  12207

RE:

(1) Your failure to return the documentary materials substantiating CJA’s September 9, 1999 story proposal

(2) The current “screening” of candidates for the Court of Appeals by the NYS Commission on Judicial Nomination – and the still pending, uninvestigated March 26, 1999 ethics complaint against it based on its previous “screening”

(3) The names and telephone numbers of your superiors at Gannett
Dear Mr. Gallagher:

Please advise as to when you intend to return the documentary materials substantiating CJA’s September 9, 1999 story proposal, whose purpose was to enable you to expose Attorney General Spitzer’s self-serving claims about his public integrity unit, dutifully repeated in Kyle Hughes’ September 8th article, “Spitzer’s Anti-Corruption Unit Gets Off to a Busy Start” and in your own September 9th article, “Spitzer to Fight Public Corruption”.

As you know, after I orally presented the story proposal to you in our September 9th phone conversation and sent you the substantiating materials to rebut Attorney General Spitzer’s false claims, I left numerous telephone messages requesting to speak with you about them
.  You failed to return a single message.  Only on April Jay Gallagher/Albany Bureau Chief
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7th was I finally able to speak with you – and then only because you fortuitously picked up the phone when I called.  My request that you return the materials followed your shocking pretense that you did not see a story in the September 9th document-supported proposal.

Like your colleague, Kyle Hughes, to whom I spoke on March 11th, and who told me on that date that Gannett would not be doing a story, you refused to explain the reason.  Indeed, you hung up on me when, immediately after our brief phone conversation, I called you back to specifically request that your return of the materials be accompanied by a one or two-line note as to why CJA’s September 9th proposal was, in your view, not a story
.  Before you slammed down the receiver, your brutish statement to me was “Elena, please leave me alone.  I have other things to do.”

In our April 7th conversation, you were completely resistant to confronting the systemic governmental corruption established by the transmitted materials, including CJA’s March 26, 1999 ethics complaint against high-ranking public officials and governmental agencies, Attorney General Spitzer and Governor Pataki among them
.  Your response to my attempt to discuss the complaint, whose fact-specific allegations I referred to as “documented” was to take issue with that description. This, notwithstanding the ethics complaint, on its face, is meticulously annotated with documentary references and annexes a seven-page inventory of substantiating documents filed with the New York State Ethics Commission, none of which you ever requested so as to verify their probative nature – a fact I pointed out to you.

Instead, you insisted on peppering me with irrelevant inquiries as to how many members CJA has and how many are in New York – neither of which bears on whether CJA’s documentary materials evidentiarily substantiate its far-reaching allegations of systemic governmental corruption. Similarly, you insistently asked what I thought of Judge Rosenblatt’s performance on the Court of Appeals – a question irrelevant to whether Judge Rosenblatt obtained that office by fraud and through subversion of “merit selection” principles by the Commission on Judicial Nomination, the Governor, and the Legislature.  Attorney General Spitzer’s complicity in that fraud and subversion by his failure to respond to the evidentiary Jay Gallagher/Albany Bureau Chief
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proof thereof – including by directing an investigation by his “public integrity unit” -- is the issue which CJA’s September 9th proposal presented for coverage, as likewise, Mr. Spitzer’s complicity in his office’s modus operandi of fraudulent litigation tactics to defend state judges and state agencies, such as the New York State Commission on Judicial Conduct, sued for corruption and abuse of power.

As reflected by the enclosed front-page item from yesterday’s New York Law Journal, the Commission on Judicial Nomination is now “screening” candidates to fill the vacancy that will be created on September 1st when Judge Bellacosa leaves the bench.  Since you have not yet returned CJA’s documentary materials, you should take the opportunity to examine how the closed-door “screening” to our state’s highest court actually works by peering into the unprecedented “window” provided by CJA’s March 26, 1999 ethics complaint (at pp. 22-24). As of this date, nearly 14 months since that fact-specific, document-supported ethics complaint was filed, the New York State Ethics Commission – whose demonstrated corruption the ethics complaint also chronicles (at pp. 7-11; 12-14) – has yet to investigate – or even acknowledge – it.  This, too, you cared nothing about when I tried to raise it with you in our brief April 7th conversation – or the fact that the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of New York has ignored, without response, CJA’s September 7, 1999 criminal complaint, which rests on that uninvestigated March 26, 1999 ethics complaint.

In the event you persist in your indefensible view that CJA’s September 9, 1999 document-supported proposal is not a story for coverage, please provide me with the names and telephone numbers of your superiors at Gannett.  They should examine for themselves the extent to which you have wilfully protected New York’s highest public officials and its critical state agencies from the meaningful scrutiny which is a journalist’s duty – and the resulting detriment to the public. Notwithstanding I understand your superiors include those in Gannett’s Westchester office, whose suppression of government corruption stories CJA has long documented, your superiors in Gannett’s Washington headquarters should be repulsed by your readiness to allow the Albany Bureau to function as an extension of the self-serving public relations machinery of the State Attorney General, among others
.

Jay Gallagher/Albany Bureau Chief
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Yours for government integrity 

and professionalism in journalism,



ELENA RUTH SASSOWER, Coordinator




Center for Judicial Accountability, Inc. (CJA)

Enclosures

� 	Subsequent to the unresponded-to phone messages I left for you and Kyle Hughes on 9/28/99, 12/6/99, 12/8/99, and 12/20/99, and Mr. Hughes’ broken promises to call back on 9/27/99 and 11/11/99, as set forth at page 3 of my January 3, 2000 letter to Mr. Hughes, I telephoned the Gannett Albany Bureau on 1/3/00, 1/13/00, 1/17/00, and 3/10/00.





� 	I had likewise requested that Mr. Hughes’s return of the materials be accompanied by a coverletter, setting forth those reasons, as well as the name and telephone number of his superior.





� 	A Table of Contents to CJA’s 29-page March 26, 1999 ethics complaint appears at page 3 thereof.


� 	In addition to the September 8, 1999 and September 9, 1999 articles by Mr. Hughes and yourself on Mr. Spitzer’s “public integrity unit” and ethics commitment is your January 11, 2000 article, “State Panel Moves to Snuff Philip Morris Lobbying Practices”.  For your convenience, a copy of that January 11th article is enclosed, as is Mr. Spitzer’s January 10, 2000 press release from which the article appears to have been taken.  You were apparently unbothered by Mr. Spitzer’s hypocrisy in mightily protesting against the State Lobby Commission’s “abdication of the commission’s statutory duties…and mockery of the statutory enforcement procedures.” – while, as reflected by CJA’s documentary materials, doing and saying nothing about the State Ethics Commission’s wholesale abdication of its “statutory duties” and “statutory enforcement procedures”, inter alia, by its wilful failure to respond to CJA’s March 26, 1999 fact-specific, documented ethics complaint against this state’s highest public officers and agencies, Mr. Spitzer included.





